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NQOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 19% Annual General Meeting of Members of Prabal
Motors Private Limited (“Company") will be held at 02.00 PM on Tuesday, 29* July,
2025, at the Registered Office of the Company at 32/2571 Hll Floor, Kuttukaran
Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O,, Ernakutam-682025, Kerala, to transact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31+ March, 2025 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. John K. Paul (DIN: 00016513), who retires
by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 (1) read with
Section 102 (2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder the Board of Directors of the company be and
is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of M/s.B5R and Co, 49/179 A, 3rd

- Floor, Syama Business Centre, NH 47 Bypass Road, Vyttila, Kochi -,682018, Firm
registration No. 128510W, who have been appointed by the Members in the18%
Annual General meeting as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period
of 5 years, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014."
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SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543) as Director

To Appoint Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543) as Director of the Company and in
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in the force) , Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543), who
was appointed as an Additional Director on 14% March, 2025 and:in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. John K Paul (DIN: 00016513), Director of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the
Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam and to do all such acts, deeds and things
that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving
effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Li

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 29.05.2025

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the
proxy need not be 3 member of the Company. The proxies to be effective
should be lodged with the Company at least 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and
holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of
the company carrying voting rights, A member holding more than 10 percent
of total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or shareholder.

3. A corporate member intending to send its authorized representatives to
attend the meeting in terms of section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the board resolution
authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the
meeting. : .

4. Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit the
attendance slips duly filled in for attending the meeting. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to write their folio number in the
attendance slip for attending the meeting.

5. During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the
meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any
time during the business hours of the Company.

6. All documents referred to in the notice and accompanying explanatory
statement are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company on
all working days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 a.m. To 1:00 p.m. up to the
date of the general meeting and at the venue of the meeting for the duration
of the meeting.

1. Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their
addresses/e-mail address so as to enable the Company to address future

BharatBenz iseorgistensitadiiernad ti Bhiroteriict addresses,

Prahal Motors Put, Lid.

Sf.N0.149/2, Avinashi Main Road,

Arasur Village Post, Thennampatayam,
Near Rellance Petrol Bunk,

Coimbatore- 641407 Tamil Nadu, India

1-+91 84899 01924
e Info@prabaltrucking.com ' Kuttukaran

[orneyswithyou




Prabal Trucking

Pralal Motors Pvt, Lid,

32/2571 H)ll Floor, Kuttuliaran Centre
Mamangalam, Cochin 682025
 (0484) 2341134

e cs@popularv.com
www.prahaltrucking.com

CIN: US0101KL2006PTCO19140

8. Pursuant to section 20(.2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies are
permitted to send official documents to their shareholders electronically.

9. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant records in respect of the ordinary business are available at the
Registered Office of the Company and electronically for inspection of the
members during business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all working days,

except Saturdays.
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By Order of the Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Ny

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 29.05.2025
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

ltem No.4:

Mr.Raj Narayan, having DIN: 10933543, S/o Mr. Narayanan Nair, resident of Saarang,
Kalapuramalikayil, Ambady, Chamathara Road, Kudamaloor, Aimanam, Kottayam -
686017, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of
Directors with effect from 14% March,2025.

In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
thereunder he holds office up to the date of next Annual General Meeting. A notice has
been received from a member in accordance with section 160 of the Act, signifying his
intention to propose appointment of Mr. Raj Narayan as a Director. His office is liable
to retire by rotation.

The Board of Directors have decided in its meeting dated 29% May, 2025 to recommend
to members to appoint Mr. Raj Narayan as a Director liable to retire by rotation.

Except Mr. Raj Narayan, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives are interested or concerned in respect of the resolution as set out vide item
(4) in the notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no.4 for approval by
the shareholders.

There is no other information and facts to disclose that may enable members to
understand the meaning, scope and implications of the said item of business and to
take decision thereon.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited

~ ‘ f
4? / /
Place: Kochi-25 John K Paul

Date: 29.05.2025 Director
DIN; 00016513
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting
hall)

|, hereby record my presence at the 19% Annual General Meeting of Prabal Motors
Private Limited held at 02.00 PM on Tuesday, 29% July, 2025 at 32/2571 H,ll Floor,
Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.0., Ernakulam-682 025., Kerala.

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SUIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING VENUE '

Name

Address &
email ID

Folio no.

No. of shares
held

| certify that | am the registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of
the Company.

Sighature of member / proxy




Form No. MGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 19(3) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name, address
and email ID of
the
shareholder(s)

Folio ro.

| / we, being the member(s) of Prabal Motors Private Limited, holding shares of
Company, hereby appoint:

BN S e addre
58 - [ SV signature:__
- e — S or failing him:
name; e —— e

_address:

________________________________________________ signature:_____________

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the
19% Annual General Meeting of the Company held at 02.00 PM on Tuesday, 29% July, 2025
at Registered Office at 32/2571 H,ll Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivattom
P.0., Ernakulam-682 025., Kerala or / and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such
Resolutions as indicated below:

5L | Resolutions : Voted Voted
no for against

1 To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of
the Company for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. John K. Paul (DIN:
00016513). who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers

3 To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors

4 | Toappoint Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543) as Director

g YoTe R 1| R — day of -=----mmemooeeeee 2025 Affix One

Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of proxy holder(s) Signature of shareholder




Notes: (1) The proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.
(2) A proxy need not be a member of the Company. (3) In the case of joint holders, the
vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall,be accepted
to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by
the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members. (4) The Form of proxy
confers authority to demand or join in demanding a poll. (5) The submission by a member
of this Form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting
at the meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company's 19% Annual Report together

with the report of the statutory auditors and the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In calendar year 2024, the global economy witnessed modest growth amid
geopolitical tensions, inflation, and trade uncertainties. Global light vehicle
sales rose by 2% to 89 million units. However, key markets like the U.S. and U.K.
faced headwinds due to newly imposed tariffs, leading to a decline in vehicle
production and sales. Despite these challenges, the electric vehicle (EV) market
remained strong, with global EV sales increasing by 25% to 17.1 million units,
driven largely by China's leadership in production and adoption.

India, meanwhile, stood out with robust economic performance. Real GDP grew
by 6.5% in FY 2024-25, the highest among major economies. Rural demand
remained resilient, supported by 4.6% growth in agriculture, a favourable
monsoon, and sustained government support. Although industrial growth
moderated to 4.3%, the Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme continued to
drive investment in auto and EV components, Easing inflation (4.6%) and a
reduction in the repo rate to 6.0% improved financing conditions and boosted
vehicle affordability.

The domestic Commercial Vehicle (CV) segment recorded sales of 9,56,671
units in FY 2024-25, reflecting a slight decline from the previous year. A shift
towards higher GVW vehicles for improved logistics efficiency and increased
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government investment in public transport led to stronger demand for buses.
The EV sector benefited from favourable policy support, deeper FAME I
implementation, and steady exports, particularly in the two- and three-
wheeler categories—reinforcing India's growing role in the global electric
mohility space.

Business Operational Review

Key highlights of financial performance of your Company for the financial year
2024-25 are provided below:

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Standalone Performance

During the year under review, the revenue from operation were at Rs.
7028.49 million as against Rs. 6454.16 million in the previous year,
recording an increase of 8.89%. The Profit Before Tax was recorded at Rs.
21.66 million in the current year as against Rs. 94.21million in the previous
year, recording a decrease of 77%.

Financial Summary & Highlights

(In INR millions, except earnings per share data)

Particulars FY 2025 FY 2024
Net Revenue from Operations 7028.49 6,454.16
Other Income 10.92 9.96

Total Revenue 7039.41 6,464.12
Employee benefit expenses 319.84 268.73
Finance costs 158.13 124,19
Depreciation and amortization 102.02 92.23

expenses
All other expenses 6,437.76 5,884.76

BharatBenz is a registered trademark of Dalmler AG
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Total Expenses | 7,017.75 6,369.91 -
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 21.66 94,21
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 17.39 3704
Deferred Tax (10.46) _ (12.35)
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 14.73 69.42
Earnings per equity share(in Rs)
Basic: 1167.27 6,942.09
Diluted : 1167.27 6,942.09

2. DEEMED PUBLIC COMPANY STATUS

As per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013 a company
which is a subsidiary of a company, not being a private company, shall be
deemed to be public company for the purposes of the Companies Act even
where such subsidiary company continues to be a private company in its
articles.

The holding company Keracon Equipments Private Limited has become
subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited with effect from 01
February 2023.

The ultimate holding company being Popular Vehicles and Services Limited,
our company became a Deemed Public Company as per Proviso to Section 2(71)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, our Company has continued to be a Private Limited Company as per
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Certain provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR)
‘Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable to the Company being an unlisted
subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited which became a listed
company from 19th March 2024,

COCHIN
632 025
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3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any
amount to the Reserves for the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the
relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to

recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of
the Company.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

7. CAPITAL & DEBT STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there is no change in the authorized share capital of the
Company.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Authorized share capital of the Company stood at
Rs. 5,00,000/- consisting of 30,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each and 20,000
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each and the paid-up equity share
capital of your Company stood at Rs. 3,41,930/- consisting of 14,193 Equity
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shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up and 20000, 0.01% Non-cumulative
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year 2018, the Company has made an allotment of 20000, 0.01%
Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each at the Board
meeting held on 5th September, 2018 pursuant to the approval of the members
by way of Special Resolution at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated 30th
April, 2022.

Preference Shares issued by the company are redeemable, at the option of the
company, at any time between six months till twenty years from the date of
issue as per Resolution of Board of directors dated 5th September, 2018. Since
these preference shares are redeemable the same is classified as a Financial
Liability in accordance with Ind AS 32: Presentation of Financial Instruments.
(Please refer Note 13 : Non-Current Liabilities).

Your ultimate holding Company, Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (PVSL)
has successfully come out with an Initial Public Offering (IPO) in the last
Financial Year. Your Company received an amount of Rs. 50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Crores Only) from the IPO proceeds as a intercorporate loan with
an option for conversion into equity shares. Subsequently, the Company
received a formal notice from PVSL exercising its option to convert a portion of
the inter-corporate loan into equity. The Board of Directors, at its meeting held
on August 16, 2024, considered and approved the request, resulting in the
conversion of the loan into equity shares and a consequential change in the
shareholding structure of the Company. Consequently, the shareholding
structure of the Company changed, with Keracon Equipments Private Limited
holding 70% and PVSL holding 30% of the equity. As a result, the Company
ceased to be a wholly owned subsidiary and became subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, requiring the appointment of Independent Directors
and constitution of statutory committees.

8. CREDIT RATING

During the financial year.under review, CARE Ratings Limited at its letter dated
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Outlook:Stable) to CARE A-; Stable (Single A Minus; Outlook: Stable) rating for
Long term facilities.

9. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the IEPF
Rules"), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the
Company to the IEPF; established by the Government of India, after completion
of seven years. Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares on which
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven
consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the
IEPF Authority.

However, your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no
funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend A/c of the
Company.

10. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the director Designation DIN
Mr. John K Paul Director 00016513
Mr. Francis K Paul Director 00018825
Mr. Raj Narayan Additional Director 10933543
Mrs. Malini Eapen. Director 02051164
Mr. Benny K.J Director 098704607
Mr. Prashant Mohan | Independent Director 00016393
Mr. George Joseph independent Director 00253754
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None of the directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of
the Act.

) Appointment

Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543) has been appointed as the
Additional Director of the company with effect from 14% March,
2025 and his appointment is sought to be regularized at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

i) Resignation

During the period under review Mr. M.A.5ajjan has resigned from
the post of Director on 14" March, 2025.

iii) Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. John K. Paul (DIN 00016513) retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

b) Key Managerial Personnel

Provisions of section 203(T) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the
Company.

c) Independent Directors

During the year under review, the status of the Company changed from a
wholly owned subsidiary to a subsidiary company pursuant to a loan-to-
equity conversion. As a result, the exemptions earlier available to the
Company as a wholly owned subsidiary under the Companies Act, 2013,
‘ceased to apply. Consequently, in compliance with the provisions of
Section 149(4) read with Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
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Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed two
Independent Directors.

Accordingly, Mr. George Joseph (DIN: 00253754) and Mr. Prashant Mohan
(DIN: 00016393) were appointed as Independent Directors with effect
from 17th January, 2025.

Further, as per Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, at least one Independent
Director of the listed holding company is required to be on the board of an
unlisted material subsidiary. Although the Company has not yet crossed
the prescribed financial thresholds to be considered a material subsidiary
under the SEBI Regulations, in view of the anticipated growth, the Board
considered it prudent to align with the regulatory requirements in
advance by appointing one of the Independent Directors of the listed
holding company to the Board.

d) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent

Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets

the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies
- Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent
Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ITS COMMITEES

a) Board meetings
During FY 2024-25, the Company held nine (9) meetings of the Board of
Directors on 08 April, 2024, 27% May, 2024, 04* June, 2024, 13t August,
2024, 16% August, 2024,13% November, 2024, 17t January, 2025, 12% February,
2025, and 14% March, 2025. The intervening gap between the meetings is
within the period as prescribed under Section 173 (1) of the Companies Act,
2013.
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b) Board Committees

On partial conversion of loan to equity, the ultimate holding company
also became a shareholder in your company; technically resulting in it
becoming a subsidiary from wholly owned subsidiary. In light of this
change, the Company is now required to comply with the applicable
provisions of the Act, including the constitution of necessary committees
such as the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and
others as may be required. .

The Board of Directors have constituted an Audit' Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Audit Committee has been constituted with Mr. George loseph
(Chairman), Mr, Prashant Mohan, and Mr. John K, Paul as members. There
were no meetings of the Risk Management Committee during FY 2024-
25.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted with
Mr. Prashant Mohan (Chairman), Mr. John K. Paul, Mr. Benny K.J,, and
Mr. George Joseph as members. There were hno meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee during FY 2024-25.

The Company has also constituted a Finance and Authorization
Committee (sub-committee).During the Financial Year 2024-25 the
Company has held 10 (ten) meetings of the Finance and Authorization
Committee on 16% April, 2024, 06" May, 2024, 20t% August, 2024, 26t
September, 2024, 05% November, 2024, 11*" November, 2024, 30%
December, 2024, 215t January, 2025, 05% February, 2025 and 19t March,
2025.
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12. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

There are no directors, key managerial personnel or other employees who
are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules,2016. '

13. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of clause(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub-section
(5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby state and
confirm that—

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company as at 31st March 2025 and of the profit of the company for that
year;

¢) Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

e) Proper systems havé been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
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14. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted the procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

15. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors has not reported to the
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its Officers or employees,

16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year under report the Company has not entered into or
invested in any new Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. The details of the
Holding and Subsidiary Companies are given below:-

Applicable
51 . Holding/ Section as
Nc.) Name of the Company Subsidiary/ per
’ Associate Companies
Act,2013
1 Eic:]ﬁ)i:(l:ér Vehicles and Services Ultimate Holding 2(46)
2. Keracon Equipments Private Limited | Holding Company 2(46)
3. NIL Subsidiary 2(87)
Company
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17. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules.

18. DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any public deposits and, as such no amount
on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on
the date of the Balance Sheet. Thus no particulars are reported as required
under Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

19. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES
The details of Investments, Loans, Guarantees and Securities to which the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 applies have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements.

20.PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions
contained in Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Information on material
transactions with reldted parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read
with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-
Ain Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having net worth
of rupees five hundred crores or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crores
or more, or net profit of rupees five crores or more during the immediately
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and spent at least 2 percentage of the average net profits of the
Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years for CSR
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activities. Hence the previsions of Section 135(1) is applicable to the company for
the year under review.

As part of our unwavering commitment to road safety, and in line with our CSR
Policy, our company has significantly amplified its efforts to positively impact
society through our ongoing CSR initiative, 'SurakshitMarg'. The CSR initiative,
‘SurakshitMarg', was launched with an aim to foster culture of responsible road
behavior in school students. 'SurakshitMarg' is an ongoing initiative .that will
continue until 2028. The CSR obligation is carried out in collaboration with our
group companies through the implementing agency, the K. P. Paul Foundation. By
conducting a variety of impactful programs in schools, the initiative aims to
influence students, thereby indirectly fostering safer road habits within their
families and the wider community. The CSR initiative, 'SurakshitMarg' is covered
under Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013 as notified under General Circular
No. 21/2014. For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, CSR obligation of the
Company aggregated to Rs.1.74 Millions.

The details of the CSR initiative has been mentioned in Annexure B which forms
part of this Report.

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, provides that the Constitution of CSR
Committee is not mandatory if total amount to be spent as per the CSR obligation
of the Company is less than

Rs. 50 Lakhs and in such cases the Board can discharge the functions of CSR
Committee.

However, subsequent amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 pursuant to the MCA notification dated 20th
September, 2022 provides that a company having any amount in its Unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility Account as per sub-section (6) of section 135 shall
constitute a CSR Committee and comply with the provisions contained in sub-
sections (2) to (6) of the said section. As the Company have unspent amount as at
the end of the financial year 2024-25.Therefore your Company is required to
constitute CSR committee.
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22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOQ (As required under section 134(3)(m)of
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

The company uses power saving lighting equipment's for its office and
workshop and saves power wherever there is scope for energy saving.

No technology absorption has taken place during the year under
consideration. '

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year.

23.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, access, monitor and
mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the
business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuous basis.

24, VIGIL MECHANISM

During financial under review the Company does not meet the criteria specified
under section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013 so there is no requirement to
form a vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy.

25. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES/REGULATORS

During the financial year under review, there were no material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company's operations in future.

26.STATUTORY AUDITORS '

The Auditoré of the Company M/s. B S R and Co, Chartered Accountants, were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years at the
17th Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30th September, 2023 until
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the conclusion of the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for
the Financial year 2027-2028.

27.STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Stétutory Auditors' in their Report for the financial year ending 31st March,
2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

28. SECRETARIAL AUIle

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has appointed
Mr. M.C. Sajumon, Practising Company Secretary, Kochi as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2025. The secretarial auditor's report does not contain any qualifications
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer.

29. INTERNAL AUDIT -

Company has established a full-fledged internal audit team headed by a qualified
Chartered Accountant, Mr. Sojan Chacko. Audit team conducts regular reviews of
the business process, operations and financial transactions to ensure adequacy
and existence of effective control systems; investigate probable risks,
deviations, fraud or misappropriations.

30.COMPLIANCE WITH' THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL _STANDARD 1_AND
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is complying with the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings and
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

31. ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
http://www.prabaltrucking.com/annual-return/.
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32. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Human Resource Department plays a pivotal role in achieving organizational
excellence. Your Company constantly strives to develop quality human
resources, to meet the challenges of competitive business environment and to
build critical capabilities in achieving the Company's objectives and goals. The
Company is continuously renewing and updating the knowledge and skill of its
employees at all levels through training and development.

As on 315t March, 2025, the Company had a total head count of 831 employees, an
increase of 74 employees over the previous year. Your Company takes significant
efforts on employee development by imparting training to employees at the
various levels.

Your Company wishes to puton record its deep appreciation for the co-operation
and efforts of its employees for the betterment of the organization.

33. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee as required under the said
Act to-fake necessary preventive actions as may be possible and also to carry
out redressal of complaints, if any, on sexual harassment and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto. Summary of sexual harassment
complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 2024-25 are as
follows:

No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: 0
No of complaints received : 0

No of complaints disposed off : O

Number of cases pending at the end of the year:0

The Committee has subniitted the Annual Report on POSH for the calendar year
2024 to the Company and the Board of Directors took note of the same at their
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meeting dated 14.03.2025. The report has also been submitted to the District
Officer, pursuant to Section 21 of the POSH Act, 2013

34, MATERNITY BENEFIT . )

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to
eligible women employees during the year.

35. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the company enjoyed cordial relationship with
workers and employees at all levels and the Directors thank all the
employees for their continued support, co-operation and valuable
contributions.

36, DISCLOSURE _ABOUT THE APPLICATION AS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC), 2016 DURING
THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Not applicable

37.DISCLOSURE ABQUT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OFf THE
VALUATION EXECUTED AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF

Not applicable
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38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation to the shareholders and
other stakeholders for their continued faith in the company and also for ‘

their valuable support.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited

47”/% fro—

John K Paul Francis K Paul
Director Director
DIN: 00016513 DIN: 00018825

Place: Kochi
Date; 29.05.2025
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FORM NO. AOC -2
ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
. {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction
under third proviso thereto. .

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or {ransactions not dt Arm’s length basis —

0
=

Particulars Details

7

pd
®

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangemenis/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value,
if any NOT
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ APPLICABLE
Date (s) of approval by the Board

Auinount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188

OO Pmm) O oolwpe
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2. *Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

;L - Particulars Details
0.

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
Nature of material contracis/arrangements/transaction
Duration of the material contracts/arrangements/transaction

- NOT
Salient terms of the material contracts or arrangements or transaction including ,
the value, if any APPLICABLE

Date (s) of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any

) OO Owi

*Refer Note 10: 35 of the financial statements

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of business: —

SL. Particulars Details
No.
A __| Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
B__ | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
C | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
D Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value,
if any NOT
E | Justification for entering into such-contracts or arrangements or transactions’ APPLICABLE
F__| Date (s) of approval by the Board p
G | Amount paid as advances, if any
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required
H - .
under first proviso to section 188
Xor and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited
el P
Place: Kochi John K Paul Francis K Paul
Date: 29.05.2025 : Director S Director

DIN: 00016513 A0 DIN: 00018825
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Annexure B

Annual Report on Corporate Saocial Responsibility (CSR)
(Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Sacial Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

CSR policy encompasses the company'’s philosophy for delineating its responsibility as a corporate Citizen
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out socially useful activities/ projects and
programs for welfare and sustainability, development of community at large. The CSR provisions are
applicable to the Company with effect from the Financial Year 2022-23 and the Company has undertaken
the CSR activities directly and through NGO.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, provides that the Constitution of CSR Committee is not
mandatory if total amount to be spent as per the CSR obligation of the Company is less than Rs. 50
Lakhs and in such cases the Board can discharge the functions of CSR Committee. The total CSR
obligation was Rs. 1.74 million and amount spent by the Company during the FY 2024-25 was Rs. 0.18
million, hence the Company has discharged its CSR functions through the Board of Directors.

However, pursuant to the amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, notified on 20th September 2022, it is mandatory for a company having an unspent
amountin its Unspent CSR Account under sub-section (6) of section 135 to constitute a CSR Committee
and comply with the provisions of sub~-sections (2) to (6) of section 135.

As the Company has unspent amount pertaining to the period under review, the Company is required
to constitute Corporate Social Responsibitity Committee in the following year.

3, Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The Company has approved its CSR policy in the Board Meeting dated 18th May, 2022. The Company does
not have Website.
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

N/A
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.
Rs. 8,73,59,910/-
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section {5) of section 135,

Rs.17,47,198/-

(©) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.

Nil
(d) Amount required to be set—o.ff for the financial year, if any.
10,000
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(B)+(c)-(d)].
Rs.17,37,198/-
6. (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing ProjeFt).
Rs.1,81,084/- '
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads.
Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.
N/A
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(@)+(b)+()].
Rs, 1,81,084 /- '
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(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Ampunt transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Amount to Unspent CSR Accountas | under Schedule Vil as per second proviso
Spent for per sub-section (6) of to sub-section (5) of section 135.
the Financial section 135.
Year. (in Rs.)
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount, Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
1,81,084 15,66,115

21.04.2025 - -

() Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SLNo | Particular Amount (in Rs.) .
() | Two percent of average net profit of the company 17,47,198
as per sub-section (5) of section 135
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,81,084
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(i)-()] | 10,000
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil
programmes or activities of the previous Financial
Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial | Nil
Years [(iiD-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

Sl. | Precedi | Amount Balance Amount | Amount Amount | Defici
No |ng transferre | Amountin | Spentin | transferred toa | remainin | e ncy,
Financi | dto Unspent | the Fund as g to be if any
al Unspent CSR Financia | specified under | spentin
Year(s) | CSR Account | lYear Schedule Vllas | succeedi
Account under (inRs) per second ng
under sub-secti proviso to sub- | Financial
sub- on (B) of section (5) of Years (in
section section Rs)
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(6) of 135 (in section 135, if
section Rs.) any
135 (in
Rs.) .
' Amou | Date of
nt(in | Transf
Rs) er
1 FY-1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 FY-2 Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil
3 FY-3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

No

9, Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

Nil
Forand on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Prabal Motaors Private Limited
Place: Kochi John K Paul Francis K Paul
Date: 29.05.2025 Director Director

DIN: 00016513 DIN: 60018825

BharatBenz is a registered trademark of Daimler AG
Prabal Motors Put, Lid.

5£.No.149/2, Avinashi Main Road,

Arasur Village Post, Thennampalayam,

Near Reliance Petrol Bunk, ,
Coimbatore- 641407 Tamil Nadu, India

t-+9184899 01924 5357
e info@prabaltrucking.com . l(uti:ukaran www.kuttularan.in

Journzys with you




Prabal Motors P, Lid.

é %@ ﬂ Tr U C k i ﬂ.g ) 32/2571Hl Floar, Kuttukaran Centre

Mamangalam, Cochin 682025
t (04B4) 2341134

e cs@popularv.com
www.prabattrucking.com

CIN: USO101KL2006PTCO19140

Annextire B.7

Details of Amount spent/unspent for the Financial Year

1. (8) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

M @ 3) @] 6 (&) @ ® (@ |00 (1)
SL| Name of | ltem from |Local| Location | Project| Amount Amount | Amount |Mod| Modeof
N| the |thelistof|area| ofthe |duratio|allocated for| spentin the |transferr| e of |Implementati
o.| Project. | activities |(Yes| project. n. [theproject(inl current edto |Impl{on- Through
in /No). Rs.). financial Year| Unspent | eme [implementing|
Schedule (in Rs.). CSR |ntati] Agency
Vit tothe Stat|Distri Account | on - name | CSR
Act. e. | ct forjche Direc Regist
project | t ration
as per |(Yes/ numbe
Section | No). v
135(6) (in '
Rs.)
1. Surakshit Promoting [Yes [Ernakula |4 550,000 1,681,084 15,66,115 |[No |K.P.Pa |[CSROO
Marg education | m& ¢ jul 01523
Thrissur, | Found |3
Kerala ation
Total 5,50,000 1,81,084 15,66,115

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Nil

Q) @ @ | @ (5) (6) ™ (8)

SL{ Name of the Project| Item |Locall Location of |Amount Mode of  |Mode of implementation

N from the|area| the project. | spent |implementatio |~ Through implementing

o. listof |(Yes/ for the n - Direct ' agency.
activities| No). project| (Yes/No).

in State/District| (in Rs.). Name. CSR
schedule . registration
Vil to the number.
Act. '
1
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(c) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (1b+Ic+1d): 1,81,084.

Forand on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited

- "

Place: Kochi-25 Jlohn K Paul Francis K. Paul
Date: 29.05.2025 _ (Director) ' (Director)
DIN: 00016513 DIN:00018825
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68/567C, Znd FLOOR, KOMBARA MARRIOTT
ST. BENEDICT ROAD (WEST END)
KOMBARA, ERNAKULAM NORTH PO, KOCHI-682 018
M.C. SAJUMON M.Com., ACMA, ACS, ACIS. PH: 0484-2395867 / 2396930 / 95671 44644
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY E-mail: cfccochin@gmail.com .

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Manaegerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Prabal Motors Private Limited

32/2571 H, IInd Floor, Kuttukaran Towers,
Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O.,
Ernakulam, Pin- 682025, Kerala.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Prabal Motors Private Limited(CIN:
U50101KL2006PTC019140) (hereinafter called the Company) having registered office at
32/2571 H, IInd Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O., Ernakulam,
Kerala, Pin- 682025 and incorporated on 01.02.2006.The éompany is a deemed public
Company, as its ultimate holding company, M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited is a
public Limited Company and a listed entity. The Company is also a step-down subsidiary of
M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited and subsidiary of M/s Keracon Equipments
Private Limited; the latter is a wholly owned subsidiary of the first mentioned ultimate
holding company M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited. - It has been informed.to me
that for the purpose of compliances under the Companies. Act, 2013 and Rules made

thereunder by M/s Prabal Motors Private Limited, it has been treated as a subsidiary of a
public company.

The Secretarial Audit of M/s Prabal Motors Private Limited for the financial year ended on
31.03.2025 was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conduets/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by, the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, T hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31.03.2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed
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hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

1 have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 according to
the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (f'.he Act) and the rules made thereunder;

TL. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there
under- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/ deemed public company;

TIL. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; The
Company has dematerialized its share certificates and appointed M/s Link Intime India Private
Limited as the Registrar and Agent (RTA) to comply with the provisions of the Act.

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under; There was no Foreign Direct Investment in the company and the company has not
made any Overseas Direct Investment and also had not availed External Commercial
Borrowings.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- .

a) The Securities and Exchange ‘Board of India (LéDR) Regulations, 2015-Not
applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011-Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed
public company; '

c¢) The Secwities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable as the company is an
unlisted/deemed public company;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not applicable as the company
is an unlisted/ deemed public company and has not offered any Employee Stock

Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme during the period under
review;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employes Benefits)
" Regulations,2014 - Not applicablé_as-the company is an unlisted/deemed ‘public
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company and has not offered any shares or granted any options pursuant to any
_ Employee Benefit Scheme during the period under review;

-g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 -~ Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company and has not issued and listed any debt securities during the period under
review; “ '

h) The Securities and Exchange BRoard of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

 Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 - Not applicable as the company is an

unlisted/deemed public company and not registered as Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agent;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regul'ations,
2009 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deémed public company; and

j) The Secuities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company and has
not bought back any securities during the period under review.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and Memorandum of Association of
the company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above, to the extent applicable to
the company.

V1. The company has identified and informed me that the industry/sector specific: laws,
applicable to the company under Central and/or State legislations, are:

a) Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and rules made there under;

VIL The company has also identified and informed me that the following Environmental
Laws, Labour laws and General laws are specifically applicable to the company under Ceniral
and/or State legislations: Environmental laws viz; Environment Protection Act, 1986 and
rules made there under; Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and rules; made
there under; Air (Prevention and Gontrol of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules made there under;
Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000, The Hazardous Wastes (Management
Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008 and Labour laws viz; The Employees’
State Instirance Act, 1965 and rules made there under, The Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Act, 1970 and rules made there under, Apprentices Act ,1961 and rules made there
under, The Employees® Provident Fund & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952 and rules made there
under; and Kerala Shops and Commercial Establishments Act,1960 and other General laws
viz; The Factories Act 1948 and rules made there under; The Indusirial Disputes Act, 1947
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and rules made thereunder; vis-a-vis The Sexﬁal Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

For the purpose of examining the adequacy of compliances with industry/sector specific laws
and Environmental laws, reliance has been placed on information/records produced by the
Company during the course of audit and the Compliance Certificate issued by the Managing
Director of the Company, based on that I am of the opinion that the company has generally
complied with the specific laws and Environmental laws etc.

I further report that the compliance by the company of the financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws and various labour laws, and other laws, has not been reviewed in this audit,
since they do not come under the scope of this audit. However, based on the information
received and records maintained by the company and on their examination I report that there
are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with thé size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with general laws like Labour
" laws, Competition law, Environmental laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines. '

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. -

The following changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and other KMPs took

place during the audit period and were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act. '

(1) Mr. Francis K. Paul (DIN: 00018825), Director, who retired by rotation in terms of
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,was re-appointed as Director of the Company
at the 18" Annual General Meeting held on 26.07.2024 as recommended by the Board
at their meeting held on 27.05.2024. -

(2) Mirs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051 164), who was appointed as an Additional Director on
the Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f., 15.1 1.2023, in accordance with Section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company was appointed as a Director of the Company upon approval by the members
at the AGM held on 26.07.2024, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. p

(3) Mr. Benny Jose Kurnthukulangara (DIN: 09704607), who was appointed as an
Additional Director on the Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f, 15.11.2023, in
accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 64 of the Articles
of Association of the Company was appointed as a Director of the Company upon
approval by the members at the AGM held on 26.07.2024, pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149 and 152 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
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M. Prashant Mohan (DIN: 00016393), was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of Directors of the Company under the Independent Category with effect from
17.01.2025, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company. '

Mr. George Joseph (DIN: 00253754), was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of Directors of the Company under the Independent Category with effect from
17.01.2025, pursuant to Section 167 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company. ’

M. Prashant Mohan (DIN: 00016393), who was appointed as an Additional Director
(Independent Category) on the Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f. 17.01.2025,
in accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Axticle 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, was appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from
17.01.2025, upon approval by the Directors at their meeting held on 17.01.2025 and by
the members at the EGM held on 12.02.2025, pursuant to'the provisions of Section 149,
150, 152, 197(5) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 25 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and in
terms of Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company and the rules made
thereunder.

M. George Joseph (DIN: 00253754), who was appointed as an Additional Director
(Independent Category) on the Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f. 17.01.2025,
in accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 64 of the
Asticles of Association of the Company, was appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from
17.01.2025, upon approval by the Directors at their meeting held on 17.01.2025 and by
the members at the EGM held on 12.02.2025, pursuant to the provisions of Section 149,
150, 152, 197(5) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 25 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and in
terms of Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company and the rules made
thereunder. .

Mr. Raj Narayan (DIN: 10933543) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from 14.03.2025, pursuant to Section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Atticle 64 of the Austicles of Association of the
Company. )

Mr. Maniyara Sajjan (DIN: 01850974) has resigned from the Board of Directors of the
Company w.e.f. 14.03.2025.

H
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I further report that the Company held nine (95 Board Meetings during the period'under
- report, respectively on 08.04.2024, 27.05.2024, 04.06.2024, 13.08.2024, 16.08.2024,
13.11.2024, 17.01.2025, 12.02.2025, and 14.03.2025, and adequate notice was given to all the
directors to schedule the Board Meetings. The agenda and detailed notes thereon were
circulated in advance, in accordance with the statutory timelines. A proper system exists
within the Company for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting, for meaningful participation at the meeting. The proceedings
of the above meetings were duly recorded and signed by the Chairman.

During the period under report, the Company entered into related party transactions with its
holding Company and other group Companies/Associates, in the nature of purchase and sale
of goods, fixed assets, availing or rendering of services, payment and receipt of Corporate
Guarantee Commission etc. and in respect of which the Company has complied with
provisions of Sections 188 and186 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable. Approyal for
entering into related barty transactions during the financial year 2024-25 was accorded at the
Board Meeting held on 08.04.2024. )

The Board at the meetings held respectively on 08.04.2024, 13.08.2024, 17.01.2025, and
14.03.2025 noted the declaration given by the directors pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Act
and ensured that none of the directors is disqualified under the provisions of Section 164(2) of
the Act. The Board also noted the Disclosure of interest and shareholding of Directors
received, pursuant to section 184(1) of the Act.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views were recorded.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 17.01.2025, constituted the Audit Committee in
accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article 69 of the Articles of
Association of the Company. The committee comprises Mr. George Joseph (Independent
Director), Mr. Prashant Mohan (Independent Director), and Mr. John K. Paul (Director).At the
same meeting, the Board also constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article 69 of the Articles of
Association. The members of this commitiee are Mbr. Prashant Mohan (Independent Director),

Mr. George Joseph (Independent Director), Mr. J ohn K. Paul (Director), and Mx. Benny Jose
Kuruthulkulangara (Director). .

The Finance and Authorisation Committee was re-constituted by the Board at its meeting held
on 08.04.2024 and 14.03.2025 respectively. During the reporting period, the Finance and
Authorization Committee met ten (10) times respectively on 16.04.2024, 06.05.2024,
20.08.2024, 26.09.2024, 05.11.2024, 11.11.2024, 30.12.2024, 21.01.2025, 05.02.2025, and
19.03.2025. The proceedings of the above committee meetings were duly recorded and signed

by the Chairman and noted in the subsequent meetings of the Board.
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During the reporting period, the Company came under the Iiﬁrview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, based on the Net profit criteria. However, in accordance with the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 and Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules, 2022
the constitution of a CSR Committee was not mandatory for the Company as the CSR
obligation was less than Rs.50 lakh, and there was no unspent CSR amount from prior years.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors discharged the fumctions of the CSR Committee. The total
prescribed CSR amount for the year was Rs.17,47,198, out of which an amount of Rs.5,50,000
was transferred to the X.P. Paul Foundation (CSR Reg. No. CSR00015233). The remaining
unspent CSR amount of Rs.11,97,198 was transferred by the Company to the Unspent CSR
Account, in compliance with Section 135(6). The implementing agency, K.P. Paul Foundation
spent an amount of Rs.1,81,083.50 on the ongoing CSR Project titled ‘Surakshit Marg® and
the agency transferred the unspent amount of Rs.3,68, 916.50 to the same Unspent CSR
Account.

As per the explanation received and the records of the company, the Company has constituted
an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the reporting period, the
said Commitiee has not received any sexual harassment complaints. As per the explanation
received from the Company, the Company has submitted the Annual Report under Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act; 2013
for the Calendar Year 2024, pur|suant to Section 21(1) of the POSH Act, 2013.

The 18th Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year ending 31.03.2024
was held on 26.07.2024 at the Registered Office of the Company. Apart from this an Exfra
Ordinary General Meeting of the Members of the Company was held at the Registered Office
of the Company on 12.02.2025 to obtain consent from the members for the appointment of
M. George Joseph (DIN: 00253754) and Mr. Prashant Mohan (DIN: 00016393) as the
Independent Directors of the company. The proceedmgs of the above meetings were recorded
and signed by the Chairman.

I further report that based on the information received and records maintained by the
company there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the company has the following specific
events/actions having a major, bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above-
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

(1) Conversion of Imter-Corporate Loan into Equity and Change in Shareholding
Structure: The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on August 16, 2024, considered
and approved the conversion of the inter-corporate loan availed by the Company from its
ultimate holding company, M/s Popu%ar Vehicles and Services Limited, into equity shares.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
issued and allotted 4,193 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a total issue price of Rs.35,770 per
share (comprising Rs.10 as face “yalue and Rs.35,760 as securities premium) to M/s
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited. This allotment has resulted in a change in the
shareholding structure of the Company. Post-conversion, Keracon Equipments Private
Limited, the immediate holding company, holds 70% of the equity share capital, while
M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, the ultimate holding company, holds the
remaining 30%.Consequently, the Company has ceased to be a wholly owned subsidiary,
and therefore, the exemptions previously available to a wholly owned subsidiary under the
Companies Act, 2013, are no longer applicable. ’

" This -report is 1o be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed hereto as Annexure A
and forms-an integral part of this report.

UDIN: A009868G000419530 M.C.SAJUMON
Place: Kochi-18 Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 29.05.2025 MN: A9868, C P. No.: 2385

ICSI Unique Code: I11995KE067800
Peer review Cert. N0.6496/2025
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‘Annexure A’
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To

The Members

Prabal Motors Private Limited

32/2571 H, IInd Floor, Kuttukaran Towers,
Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O.,
Ernakulam, Pin- 682025, Kerala

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial or other statutory records is the responsibility of the
management of the company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
records based on my audit. -

9. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
records. 1 believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

4. Thave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books
of Accounts of the company. .

5. Where ever required, I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

7 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company. ! ?

PN-2385
COCHIN-18

UDIN: A009868G000419530

M.C.SAJUMON ,
Place: Kochi-18 Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 29.05.2025 ' MN: A9868, C P. No.: 2385

ICSI Unigue Code: Il995KEO67800
Peer review Cert. No.6496/2025
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49/179A, 3rd Floor, Syama Business Centre

B S R and CO NH 47 Bypass Road, Vyttila
Kochi—682 019, India
Chartered Accountants Telephone: +91 484 4148 500

Fax: +91 484 4148 501

Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Prabal Motors Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

=

We have audited the financial statements of Prabal Motors Private Limited (the "Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

‘(‘ In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

: accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other

. comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 6f adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

&,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

\% |

i 14th Floor, Ceniral B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
H Weslern Express Highvaay, Goregaon (Easl), Murabai - 400063
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Direclors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

\S(f/ Page 2 of 10
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Prabal Motors Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the paragraph
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account. !

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 and
1 April 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
above. .

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordanbe with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 27 to the financial statements. .

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disciosed in

the Note 36 a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 36 b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in ‘other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Fundmg Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, segurity or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
Page 3 of 10
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, Independent Auditot’s Report (Continued)
Prabal Motors Private Limited

softwares for maintaining its books of accounts relating to general ledger and payroll records,
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

In respect of the accounting software used for maintaining general ledger, due to limilations in
system configuration, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature for the said software
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and whether
there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with or audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

In respect of the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to payroll
process, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application
layer to log any direct data changes.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the
accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to payroll, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail for
the payroll software has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given {o us, the‘Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForB S RandCo
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:128510wW

Ve

Vipin Lodha
Partner
Place: Kochi ! _ Membership No.: 076806

Date: 29 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25076806BMRKBL3815
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

(i) (a)

(i)

(iv)

v

(vi)

Wy

©

(d)

(e

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinalion
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, ceriain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(j)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or.both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventary, except goods-in-transit has been physically verified by the managem'ent during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company. !

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or securily or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a} to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Seclions 185
and 1886 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is nol applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the lndelﬁendent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(vili)

(ix) (a)
(b)

©

(d)

I,

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the sale of
automobiles and related services. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed slatutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Gess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Income-Tax which have nol been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Amount in INR millions

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where -
statute dues which the | dispute is pending
amount
relates '
Income Tax Act, | Income tax and 7.21 | AY 2014 - | Commissioner of
1961 interest 20156 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income tax and 1.85 | AY 2018 - | Commissioner of
1961 interest 2019 Income Tax
(Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. ,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans during the year and the term loans
obtained in the previous periods were fully utilised in the respective periods. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

®

) (@)

(b)

(xi) (a)
(b

(©)
(>4ii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)
(b)
©
(d)

(xvii)

L,

financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicabie.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given fous, the Company is nota Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related parly transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. -

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have CIC as part
of the Group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. .

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of flnanC|aI liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our altention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

ForB S Rand Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:128510W

Vst

Vipin Lodha

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 076806
Date: 29 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25076806BMRKBL3815
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial staiements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference fo the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paradgraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Prabal Motors
Private Limited (“the Company") as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). .

The Company’s Management and the Board of Direclors are responsible for establishing and maintaining

- internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

\T(/\ Page 9 of 10
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Prabal Motors Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:128510W

Dl

Vipin Lodha

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 0768086
Date: 29 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25076806BMRKBL3815
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Al amaunts in Indian Rupees million)

Asscts ,
Non-current assefs
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assels
Financial assets

Other financial assels
Income tax assets (net)
Delerred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assels
‘Total non-current asscts

Current assets
Inventaries
Financinl assets
‘Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
QOther curren assets
_'l'ptnl current assets
b',_"!'oml NSSLLS

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other cquity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current iabilities
Financial liabilitics
Borfowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current linbilitics
Current liabjlities
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

~,

t/‘ My - ‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
£

Y

A - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mjero enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current linbilities
Total liabilities

Total equity aud liabilities

Material accounting policies

“I'he accompanying notes forn an integral part of the financial statements.

"As per our report of even date attached:
for BSRand Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 128510W

ST

Vipin Lodha
Parwer
Membership No.: 076806

Kaochi
29 May 2025

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4 25931 264 36
4 1.19 -
33 493.74 474 80
5 2.05 11.58
11 23.05 2280
26 10.65 5.57
26 23.44 . 12.76
6 . 1610 1134
829,53 803.18
7 502.40 1.017.75
8 . 366.07 468.29
9 5553 43.74
10 0.09 0.09
6 112.02 16571
1,036.11 1,695.58
1,365.64 2,498.76
12 - 0.14 - 010
363.14 199.10
363.28 199.20
13 283.53 55124
33 551.23 308 08
15 2.99 3.10
837.75 1,062.42
13 44170 982 47
33 3323 24 66
17
2.46 8.96
20.56 129.78
14 23.40 1774
15 1.84 133
16 141,42 - 7180
G64.61 1,237.14
1,502.36 . 2,299.56
1,865.64 2,498.76
3

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Prabal Motors Private Limited

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

Francis K Panl
Director
DIN: 00018825

Kochi
29 May 2025

CIN: USD10 l:cl,yyﬁ’rcmmo




Prabal Motors Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense
Impairment losses/ (gains) on financial assets
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax (credit)/ charge
Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Htems that will not be reclassified subsequently tb profit or loss
Remeasurement of nel defined benefit plan

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each)

Basic (in INR)
Diluted (in INR)

Material accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the [inancial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

Jor BSRaud Co
Chartered Accouniants
Firm registration number: 128510W

Yipin Lodha

Partner
Membership No.: 076806

Kachi
29 May 2025

Nofes

18
19

20
21
22
23
24
32
25

26
26

28

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

7,028.49 6.454.16
10.92 9.96
7,039.41 6,404.12
5,732.83 6.272.88
515.35 (545.34)
319.84 268.73
158.13 124.19
102.02 92.23
6.86 (4.21)
182.72 161.43
7,017.75 6,369.91
21.66 94,21
17.39 37.14
(10.46) {12.35)
6.93 24.79
14.73 69.42
(0.87) (0.87)
0.22 0.21
(0.65) (0.66)
14.08 68.16
1,167.27 6.942.09
1,167.27 ' 6.942.09

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of -
Prabal Motors Private Limited

CIN: US0101KL2006PTCO19140

S

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

Kochi

29 May 2025

| Vﬂ foa—"

Francis K Paul
Director
PIN: 00018825
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Stitement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mnrch 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data)

Al

Equity share eapital

Particwlars Notes Equity shares Amount

As al 1 April 2023 10,000 0.10

Share issued during the year - .

Balance as at 31 March 2024 12 10,000 0.50

Share issued during the year 4.193 0.04

Balance as at 31 Dlarch 2028 ‘12 144,193 0.14
Qther cquily 3

Reserves and sueplus Ttems of other comprehensive . )
income Tatal ather equily attributable
Particulars . Remeasurement of net defined to cqpuily holders of the
Retained Sceurilies premium benefit liability/ (asset), net of ’ Company
earnings tax

Balance ns at 1 April 2023 129,58 0.76 130,34
“Total comprelicnsive income for the year
Profil for the year, net of tax 69442 - - 6942
Other comprehensive income, net of fax - 10.66} 111 0b)
Total comprehensive income 69412 - (0.66) 68,77
T 1 1o retained camings (0.66) - 066 -
Halance as at 31 March 2024 198.34 - + 076 199.10
Tolal comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year, net of 1ax 14.73 - - 1473
Security premium - 149.96 149.96
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - (0.65) (065}
‘Foln) comprehensive income 14.23 149,96 {0.65) 164,04
T d to relained {0.65) - 0.65 -
“Batance as at 31 March 2025 212,42 149.96 0,76 363.04
“The deseription of the nature and purpose of ench Feserve within equity is as follows:

a) Retnined earnings

“This represents the profits  losses of the Company eamed till date, net of appropriations.

b) Secuvitics preminm

Secusities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares, Itisin d with the p of the Comp Act, 2013

¢} Remeasurement of net defined benelit liability/ (asset)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit Jiability/ (nsset) comprises aguarial gains and [osses and retusn on plan assels {excluding interest income)

Mlaterial siccounting policies - vefer ntole 3

‘The accompanying notes farm an inlegral part of the financial statements.

.

As per aur report of even date attached -

Jor BS Rand Co
Cliartered Accennyjants
Finm regisiration number: 128510W

VoSl

Vipin Lodha
Parmer
Membership No.: 076806

Jar and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Prabal Motors Privat,
U50101KL2006PTC

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

Francis I Paul
Dircetar
DIN: 00018825

Kochi
29 May 2025

Kochi
29 May 2025
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Statement of eash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Cash Nows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Finance costs
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment cxpense
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets
Impairment losses on financial assets
Liabilities no fonger required written back
Reversal of provision for obselete inventory
Interest income
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Working capital ntovements:
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrense / (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) in loans and other financial asscts and other assets
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
acome taxes paid, net
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash Tlows from investing activities

Interest received

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in from investing activities (B)

Cash fiows from financing activities
Interest paid

Long-term borrowings availed

Long-term borrowings repaid

Short-term borrowings (repaid)/ availed (net)
Interest on lease liabilities

Principal payment of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and eash equivaients at the end of the year (Refer to Note 9 - Cash and cash equivalenis)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

21.66 94.21
158.13 124.19
102.02 92.23
{0.64) .

- 686 o421
(397 (3.06)
(3.30) .
(1.23) (091}
(1.81) (©17)

27772 302.28
518.65 (543.34)
95.36 1361.98)
48 67 [ERIRYA]

(37.12) 30.74

903.28 (T15.87)

(22.47) (12.43)

880,81 (758.30)

- 0.91
(36.42) (56.50)
{0.39) (0.17)
3.00 036
(3381 (35.40)
(106 58) IRES
. 576 30
(45.62) (106.98)
{613.06) 481 74
(51.55) {43 07)
(18.40) (7.67)
(833.21) 819,19
11.79 549
43.74 38.24
55.53 13.74

i
3
!
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Prabu Motors Private Limited
Statement of cash Bows for the yene ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Reconciliation of financial linbilitics forming part of fi

activities in nccordunce with fnd AS 7:

Particulars Asal  Lonn availed/ Principle puyment of  Interest pnymicnt an Other non ensh Asnt
1 April 2024 {repaid), net Tease linbility Jense linbitity M changes 31 March 2025
Non eurrent borrowings (including current maturitics of lony term borrowings) 561.15 (15.62) - - t150.00) 36553
Current borrowings (refer note 13) 972,76 (613.06) - - 35970
Leasc liabilitics (refer note 33) 532.74 - (18.40) (51.55; 121.65 584 40
Particulnrs Asat  Loan availed/ Principlc pnyment of  Intervest payment on  Other non cash Asal
1 April2023 __ (repaid), net lense linbility Iense linbility changes 31 March 2024
Non curren! borrowings (including current maturitics of long term barrowings) 91.83 469.32 - - - 561 15
Current borrowings (refer note 13) 491.03 481.74 - - - 93276
Lease liabilities (refer note 33) 265.42 - (7.67) (43.07) 118 66 LAREZ]

“The Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indireet method as set vut in the Ind AS 7 *Statement ol Cash Flows".

Materinl acconnting policics - refer uote 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
]

As per our report of even date altached:

for BS Rand Co
Chartered deconntants
Firm registration number: 128510W

N Vipin Lodha
Partuer
Menbership No.- 076806

. Kachi
29 May 2025

{ | @(F

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

Kochi
29 May 2025

Jor and on behalf ol the Board of Directors of'
Prabnl Motors Prjvate Limited
Us0101KL2006P1°C019140

/féﬂ/%

Francis K Pnul
Director
DIN. 060018825




Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies

AN,

=

Company overview

Prabal Motors Private Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated in 2006 as a Private Limited Company. The Company is engaged in the
business of sale and service of commercial vehicles, sale of spare parts and accessories. The Company is headquartered in Kochi. India and has
operations in Tamil Nadu and Maharashtra. Keracon Equipment Private Limited is the Holding Company and Popular Vehicles and Services
Limited is the Ultimate Holding Company.’

The registered address of the Company is: 32/2571 11 Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivatton P.O., Ernakulam-682 025

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements arc prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act

“Ihe financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's, Board of Directors on 29 May 2025.

Details of the Company’s material accounting policies including changes thereto are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's lunctional currency. All amounts are presented m
Indian Rupees in millions, unless othenvise stated. )

Basis of measurcment
“I'he financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on accrual basis except for the following items:

Items Mensurement basis
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assels less present value of defined benelit
obligations

Use of estimates and judgements

. N ) . . N 0 .
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that afltect the appheation of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are revicwed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in Note 33 - Leases.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significance risk of resulting in @ malesial adjustment for the year ended
31 March 2025 is included in the following notes: *

Note 27 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of
resources;

Note 31 - measurement of defined obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 32 - financial instruments.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures requires the measurement of fair value, for both financial and non-financial
assels and liabilities, The Company has an established control frameswork with respect 1o the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 1 valuation techniques as follows:

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are abservable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c., as prices) or
indirectly (i.¢., derived from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses abservable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used 10
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Current/ Nou-current classification

Based on the time involved between acquisition of assels for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
identificd twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non current classification of asscts and liabilitics in the Balanee
Sheet. .
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 Material accounting policies

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

A Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if'any. .
Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, road
taxes aller deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated cosfs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor. any other costs directly
altributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is lacated.
1f significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheel date are shown date are shown under long-term loans
and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at cach balance sheel date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress
Borrowing costs directly attributable to theacquisition, construction or production of those fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial periad
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

B Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

C  Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated uselul Hves
using the straight-line method, and is generatly recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the
lease term or the useful lives of asscls, whichever is lower. Frechold land is not depreciated. ,
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Compuier equipment Useful life (in years)
Building owned 60
Motor cars 8
Mbtor cycles and trucks 10
Offfice cquipments 5
Plant and machinery 15-25
Tools and equipment 5
Electrical equipments 0
Fumiture and fixtures 10
Computer equipment 3
The'uselul life of items of property, plant m.1d equipment is in line with the Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013,
Transition to Ind AS
The cost of property, plant and equipment at 1 April 2021, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference (o its
currying value recognized as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

3.2 Intangible asscts

The cost of an intangible asset shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized wver their respective
individual cstimated usefisl lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is avaitable to the Company for its use and is
included in amortization in protit or loss.

The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Computer equipment Useful life
Compiiter soflware 3 years
Other intangible assels 2 years

Amortization method, usetul lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted, il appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embaodicd in the specific asset Lo which it relates Al
other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as ficurred.
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 Material nccounting policies (continued)

3.3 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving cmployee services are classified as short-term employee benclils. These
benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Shori-term employee benefit obligations are meastured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under shori-term cash bonus. 1Wihe
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the emplayee and the amount of
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefils

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan‘is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for conlributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an cmployee benefit expense
in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in [uture payment is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plan is caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have carned in the current and prior periods and
discounting (hat amount and deducting the fair value of any plan asseis, if any.

“The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
caleulation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits avaitable in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling).

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit linbility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCH). The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount ratc used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the annual period (o the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit hability
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed o when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost
or 'pasl service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses an
the seitlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs.

Other long term employee beneflls

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized acerued compensated absences and utilize it in [uture service periods or receive
cash compensalion on termination of cmployment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within tweive month afier the end of
the period in which the employees rendered the related service and are also not expected 1o be utilized whally within twelve months afier the end
of such periad, the benefit is classified as a long-term cmployce benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation 1s measured on the, basis of independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they arise

3.4 Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated rehably.
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) al
a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific o the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are nol provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its. obligations under the contract. The provision for an oncrous contract is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expecled cost of terminating the contract and the expected nel cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made.
the Company recognizes any impainnent loss on the assets assaciated with that contracl.

’4{‘\3?" RN '
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statenients (continued)

3.6

3.7

Matevinl accounting policies (continued)

Revenue

Sale of products
Revenue on sale of commercial vehicles, spare parls and accessories is recognized when it transfers controi over a good to a customer and is
accounted net of goods and service tax and discounts, if any.

Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting reccivable is reasonably assured.

‘The Company generates revenue from sale of commercial vehicles, spare parts and accessories and other operating avenues. Under Ind AS 1153,
revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer. &
cantract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract.

Rendering of services
Revenues from servicing of commercial vehicles are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are incurred.

Commission, discount and-incentive income

Commission income is recognized when services are rendered and in accordance with the commission agreements,

Discounts and incentive income is recognised when the services are rendered and as per the relevant scheme/ arrangement provided by the
manufacturer. Tn respeet of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising incame on an acerual basis,

Other income '

In caleulating the interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asseis (when the assels 1s not credu
impaired).

Inventorics

Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost comprises purchase price and other costs ineurred in bringing the inventory
to its present location and condition. The cost is caleulated on specific identification.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. The comparison of cost and net realispble value of inventory
is made on an item by item basis.

The provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed annually and is provided as considered necessary.
Financial instruments

Recognition and initinl measurement

Trade reccivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized wiien they arc originated. All other financial ussets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.. A trade receivable without 4
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade reccivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair valee
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
1]




Prabal Motors Private Limited '
Notes to the linancinl statements (continued)

3

Material accounting policies (continued)

TFinancial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classificd as measured at cither at amortized cost, FVTPL or fair value in other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). '

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its busmess model
for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if’ it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is (o hold assets to colleet contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intcrest on the
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably clect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial asscts. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designale a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortized cast or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or sigailicantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise. ,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Compnay makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment level because this best
reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice.

- the risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within (hat business model) and how those risk are
managed

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about the future sales
activity

Transfer of financial asscls to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose.
consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual casiflows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial recognition ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of’
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash fiows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the {inancial asset contains a comtractual term that could chiange the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms thal may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and exiension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specilied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial ussets: Subsequent measurement and gains aud losses

Finmeial assets al | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Nel gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
FVTPL recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assetsal  |These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the cfiective interest method. ‘The amortized cost 1s
amortised cost reduced by impainnent losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are*recognized i profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Equity investments |These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless the
at FYOCI dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
OCI and are riot reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

b
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Prabal Motors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3

3.7

3.8

Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Finaucial linbilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities arc classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial linbility is classified as at FVTPL it'it is classified as held
for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other financia! liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. Interest expense and forcign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition '

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor refains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not relain
control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transterred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial linbilities .

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash Rows under the modified terms arc substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The ditference between the carrving
amount of the {inancial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the nel amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither to scttle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and sctife
the Jiability simultaneously.

Lmpairment

Linpaivment of financial instruments
‘The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financinl assets carried at amortized cost are credit impuired. A financinl asset is ‘credit
impaired' when one or more cvents that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses
are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company
is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit lasses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortialis
(i.c. the dilference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects o
receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost arc deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assels or sources of income that could generate sullicient
cash flows to repay (he amounts subjcct to the write off.

ettt
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Prabal Motors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3.9

Material nccounting policies (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed al each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication cxists, then {he assel's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assels that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assels that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value m use 1
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the lime value of maney and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impaimment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews at ench reporting date whether there is
uny indication that the loss has deercased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only 10 the extent that the assel's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease )

At the inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of the
arrangement that contains a Jease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease
and those for ather clements on the basis of their relative fair values.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for cach lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract and
allocates the consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the leise component and the
aggrepate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing ils right to use {he underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date.
The cost of the right-of-use asset mensured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease linbility adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying assel or site on which
it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses. 11 any
and adjusted Jor any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-ol-use asscis are
determined on the saine basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use asscts are tested for impainnent whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and foss.

t
‘The Company measures the lease iability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of'the tease The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if’ that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uscs incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments. residual
value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain o exercise thal option and payments of penaitics

for tenninating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the camying amount to refiect interest on the lease liabitity, reducing the carmying
amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount 10 reflect any reassessment or Jease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease lability due to modification as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of moditication. Wherg the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is reduced lo zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in the stateinent of profit and loss.

‘The Company has clected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a Jease term of 12
months or less. The lease payments assaciated with these leases are vecognized as an expense ona straight-line basis over the lease tenm
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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3.10

—

3.1

3.12

Material accounting policies (continued)

Recognition of interest income or interest expense

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expectéd life of the financial
instriment to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of (he asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.

Tucome tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relales to an item
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expecled to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacled or substantively enacled by
the reporting date. '

Current tax assets and cument. (ax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set ofT the recognized amounts, and 1 s
intended to realize the assct and settlc the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax asset and lability are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respeet of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recoguized to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profits will be available against whichthey can be used The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that fisture taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses.
the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufticient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assels - unrecognized
or recognized, are reviewed at cach reporting date and are-recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tex rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on ihe
lnws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expeets, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are oftset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income laxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to seltle current las
liabilities and assels on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultancously.

Earnings per share

The basic eamings/lass per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) afier 1ax for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

‘The number of shares used in computing diluted camings per share comprises the weighled average number of shares considered for deriving
basic eamings per share and also the weighted average number of cquity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilupne
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential cquily shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the-period unless issued at a later date. In
computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases luss pes
share are included.
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3.13

3.14

3.16

Materinl accounting policies (continued)

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash reccipts or payments. The cash flaws from regular revenue generating, invesling and
financing activities of the Company are segregated. '

Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less winch
are subject Lo insignificant risk of changes in value

Contingent linbilitics and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confinned only by
the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fature cvents not wholly within the control of the Campany ar a present obligation
{hat arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The existence of a contingent
liability is disclosed in the noles to the financial statcments.

|
Contingent assel is not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realiscd. However.
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asscts arc reviewed at each Balance Sheet date

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. There are no new standards or amendments Lo the existing standards that are notified impacting the
financial statements of the Company.

PP
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (continued)

a) Ageing of capital work-in-progress

*

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure toswards construction of new workshops/ service centres.

As at 31 March 2025

Description

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

NMore than 3 years

Projects in progress

1.19

Projects temporarily suspended

As at 31 March 2024

Description

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

":Projects in progress

{Projects temporarily suspended

b) Details of capital work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its orginal plan

The Campany did not have any CWIP which is ovetdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan and hence CWIP completion schedule 1s not
pany Y | P

applicable as on 31 March 2025.

¢) For details of property, plant and equipment pledged, refer note 13.
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Prabal Motors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amoums n Indian Rupees million)

5

Intangible assets

Particulnrs Sg;]‘i)::zl O(I‘e:;:;c(::‘gible Total
Reconcilintion of carrying amount .

Balance at 1 April 2023 7.12 32.39 39.51
Additions 0.18 - 0.18
Disposals R - -
Impairment loss . . .
Balance at 31 March 2024 7.30 32.39 39.69
Balance at 1 April 2024 7.30 3239 39.69
Additions 0.39 - 039
Disposals - .

Impairment loss - R R
Balance at 31 March 2025 7.69 32.39 40.08
Amortisntion

Balance at | April 2023 0.94 9.88 10,82
Amonrtisation for the year 2.31 10.03 1234
Disposal - . -
impairment loss . 4.95 495
Balance at 31 March 2024 3.25 24,86 28.11
Balance at | April 2024 3.25 24,86 28,11
Amortisation for the year 2.39 7.53 9.92
Disposal - -
Impairment loss R - -
Balance at 31 March 2025 5,04 32.39 38,03
Net enrrying amount

At 31 Mareh 2025 - 205
At 31 Mavch 2024 03 7.53 1158




Prabnl Motors Private Limited

Notus to the fi inl {continued)
(Al amouats in indian Rupees miilion)
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6 Other assets ¢
Non-current
tnseeured, comndered good
Capital advances 010 0l
Prepayments 1140 109G
Net defined benetit asset - Gratuity plan (Refer Nate 31) . 400 .
16,10 11.31
Current
Unseeured, considered good
Prepayments 911 345
Advance to staft’ 0138 75
Balance with statutory 7 governmens authorities 96 52 (B
Paynient to vendors for supply of goods and services 6 U1 a7
112,02 165,78
128.12 177.02
1
The Company has not wiven any loan to their dircetors during the period ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
7 {nventorics
Valued at lower of cost and realisable value)
New vehicles 281.53 821 87
Spares and lubricants ) 220.99 106 30
502,52 1.021.17
Less: Provision for obsolete i Y . (0.12) (342)
502.40 1,017.75

Closing stock includes value of goods i transit of new veliicles for INR 112 10 nullion (31 March 2024. INR 80.88 milhon). spases and lubncants for INR 28 74 nution

(31 March 2025 INR

£5.62 miillion)
8 Trade veccivahles
Curreat
Unsecured
considered good 366.07 16429
considered doubtful . 1482 7 6
380.59 47395
Allowances for expected credit loss (Refer Note 32) (14.532) 17 6oy
Net trade receivables 366.07 468.29
For details of trde receivables from related parties, Refer Nn;e 35.
Trade receivables ageing schedule:
As at 31 March 2028
Particulnrs Not tdue Less than 6 months 6 months - § year - dlore than 1 year Total
i)Undisputed trade receivables ~ idered good 269.07 94.76 224 - 36607
ii)Undisputed trade receivables - which haye significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
iii)Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - 3.38 286 §28 14.52
2069.07 98.14 S.10 B.28 380,59
As at 31 March 2024
v
Particalars Not due Less than 6 months 6 wionths - 1 year  Nore than } year Total
i)Undisputed Lrade receivables - considered good 311.67 14848 814 65 2
ii)Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
iii)Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - 1.50 132 4.84 766
311,67 149.98 9.46 4.84 475,95
The Company’s exposure lo credit and cusrency risks and loss allowances related to trade recervables are disclosed in Note 32.
9 Cash nnd cash equivalents
Balanees in current accounts 54.34 1287
Cash on hand 1.19 087
Cash aud cash equivalents in balanee sheet 55.53 13.74
Cash and cash equivatents in the statement of cash flows 55.53 13.74
*
16 Bauk balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks held as margin money 0.09 0.09
0.09 0.09
“The margin money has been kept with banks for the purposes of opening cusrent accounts.
t1 Other financial assets
Nou-current
Unsecired, constdered gaad ~
Rent and otlier deposits 2305 2280
23.08 22,80

S




Prabal Motors Private Limited
* Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data)

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

(g)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Equity share capital Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of INR 10 each 30,000 0.30 30,000 0.30
Redeemable Preference Shares INR 10 each 20,000 0.20 20,000 0.20

50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50 _

Issued, subseribed and paid-up
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up
At the beginning of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Add: Additions during the year 4,193 0.04 - -
At the end of the year 14,193 0.14 10,000 0.10

During the year, the Company had issued 4,193 fully paid up equity shares at a nominal value of INR 10 per share at a fair value of INR 35,770 per share resulting in a securities
premium of INR 149,96 million by converting loan from its Ultimate Holding Company amounting to INR 150.00 million. Also refer to note 13.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled 1o
receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to share of paid-up equity capital of the
Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on the shares
may lead to the forfeiture of shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after the
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by Holding Company/ Ulti Holding C

L g
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Keracon Equipments Private Limited - Holding Company 9,999 0.10 9,999 0.10
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - Ultimate Holding Company 4,193 0.04 - -
14,192 0.14 9,999 0.10
Details of sharcholders holding maore than 5% shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by Number of shares %o holding Number of shares % holding
in the class in the class
a) Keracon Equipments Private Limited - Holding Company 9,999 70.45% 9999 949.99%
b Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - Ultimate Holding Company 4.193 29.54%, = =
Details of shares held by Promoters at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of the Promoters Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
in the class in the class
a) John K. Paul 1 0.01% 1 0.01%

Details of bonus shares issued during the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

Details of buyback and bonus shares issued for consideration other than for cash in the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,
The Company has not bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration other than for cash during the period of five years immediate preceding the
balance sheet date. There has been no change in shareholding pattemn in the current year compared to the previous year.
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the fi inl (continued
{AH amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Borrowings

Non-current
Secured

Asat
31 March 2025

As
31 Murch 2024

Term lnans from banks Si8 11
Redecinable preference shares 0.20 02
Vehicle loans from financial institutions 173. 386
Unseemed
f.oan from related parties (Refer Note 12 (a) and Note 35) . 21342 535,78
283,53 5812
Current
Secured
Cash credit and overdraft facilitics from banks - i34l
Short term loan from banks 359.70 938 85
Current maturities of Jong-term borrowings (Refer Note 35) 542 99]
Unsecured
[.oan froni relnted pasties (Refer Note 35) 76.58 -
441,70 . 982,67
725,23 1,533.91
Total borrowings 725.23 1.533.91
Information about the Company's cxposure lo interest rate and liquidity risks are included in Note 32.
a) Details of securitics, terms aud litions of borrowings from bauks and financial institutions
Nature of borrowings Seeurity sernis Temure 3 Mnrrh';:);; 30 .\lurvhl;(s);:
Long term loans from banks -sccured  |Guaranteed by NCGTC and Second charge on all primary and collateral securities 49 months - 354
ilable fur the ing facilitics.
1.ong term loans from banks - secured  [Paripassu charge on alt current assets along with Federal Bank except for stock 60 moaths 1143 1517
funded by other IF bunkers and excluding Hhie vehicles funded by other HP Banker
Extension of Equitable Morigage over following properties: Land & Building|
situated at 8. No, 136/872 & 3, MO/l & 14072 (Re. Sy. No. 100/ 4-3, 4-4, -5, 4-6, 4-|
7.4-84-9 and Re Sy No. 11171 Re 8y Block No 5), Village-Paltichal, Linuts-Pallichal
Panchayath, Taluk-Neyyattinkara, Disteict-Thiruvananthapuram, KeraluPin 695121
owned by Kutlukaran Homes LLP. (Laud Arca - 58.42 Ares (37.03+21.39)) is
equal to 144.30 Cents. Sceured by Corporate Gi of sister Kutuk M
Homes LLP.
Vehicle loan - secured Seeured by hyp of vehicles purchased using the fund. 36 months 3.86 612
Related party loan - unsecured - Refer note below - 3535
Related party loan - unsecured - 60 months 150.00 500 00
Short term loan from banks ~ secured Primary: Hypothecation of entire current assels cxclading stock and recervables]  On demand 35939 968 77

financed by inventory funding and receivable created owt of sale of same  Secured
by Cormorate Guarantee ol the Holding Company Keracon E Private]

Limited

b s from banks/ financial

with the market rate. No interest is payable on loan from directors and the same is not repayable within 1 year from the date of Balance Sheet

carry inlerest rates from 8% 1o 10% per annum and loan from Popular Viehicles and Services Lid has an interest rate of 8 65%, which 1s m tne

¢} The Company has availed working capital Facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets and have submitted quarterly returns of current assets and current hubibitios to the
bankers. There are no variances between such returns and books of accounts in the cursent year. The summary of vatiances pertaimeng 10 previous year is given belaw

As at 31 dMarch 2024

Amount ns per Amount reported in
Quarter ended Name of bank Particulars books the Quarterly - Varinuce
Statement
30 September 2023 Federal Bank Inv: y - new vehicle 798.02 79:4.91 kA
31 December 2023 Federal Bank Inventory - new vehicle 78348 772.06 1142
30 September 2023 Federal Bank Trade receivables 316.31 300.25 16.60
31D ber 2023 Federal Bank Trade seceivibles 531.19 499,58 336l

d) The Company has utilised the loans availed for the puspose it was availed.
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“Prabal Motors Privale Limited

Notes to the fis ial ({continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)
Asat Asat
3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Other financial linbilities
Current .
Accrued safaries and benefits ) 23.40 LKKR)
23.40 17.74
The Campany's exp 0 and liquidity risk related 10 the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 32.
Provisions
Non-curvent
Provision for emplayee benefits
Net defined henefit fiabiliyy - Grawity - B X34
-Compueusated absences e 2.99 241
: 2.99 --3.10
Current Y
frravision for enylayee bengfits \ N
Compuensated absences 1 1.8 i
Y L84 153
4.83 4,63
Other linbilitics
Current
Contract liabilities 45.02 si.42
Statutory dues payables 95.21 18.38
Corporate Social Responsibility (CCSR') liability 1.20 -
141,42 7180
141442 7180
Movement in conmtenet linhilitles
Openinyg balance at the beginning of the year 106.84 47.92
L.css : Revenue recopnised during the year . {106 84} s 80
Add. Additions to advances from during the year J45.02 a3az
Closing balanceat the end of the year . 45.02 106 84

The comtract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration reccived from the customers for the purchasc of vehicles. This will be recognised as revenue as and when the Company meets the
perfarmance obligation by delivering the vehicles.

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.46 896
Total outstanding dues of cieditors other than micro enterprises and sniall enterpriscs 20.56 129.78
23.02 138.74

Trade payable ngeing scliedules

As nt 31 March 2025

Qutstanding for the following perinds Mrant the ilate of payment

Particulass Less than 1-2 yoars 23 years More than Totat
1year 3 venrs

i) MSME T o248 0.05 - - 246

ii) Others 2048 0.08 . - 2050

iii) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - . -

iv} Disputed Dues-Others ’ - . . . -

+v) Unbilled dues - - . . .
22,89 013 B . 23,02

As at 31 Mnvch 2024

Qutstanding for The following periods from the date of payment

Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Total
1 year 3 years

i} MSME ' 892 0.03 - - $.95
ii) Others 109.70 0.00 019 010 Hons
iii} Disputed Dues-MSME - - - . .
v} Disputed Dues-Othess - - - - -
~) Unbilled dues 19.74 - - - 19 74

i 138.36 0,09 0.19 ’ 0.10 138.74

Al trade payables are ‘current’

The Campany's exp to und Tiquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 32.

Disclosnres as vequived undes the Micro, Smnll and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (*tle Act™) based on the information available with the Company are given Delow:

. Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
‘The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 246 §us
‘The interest due on the prineipal ini ding as at the end of the year - .
The amount of interest paid under 1he Act; afong with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during the year - .

“The amount of interest due and payable for the period 6f delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but - -
without adding the interest sperified under the Act.,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to . -
the smatl enterprise, for the purpose of disall as a deductible expenditure under the Act




Prabal Mators Private Linited
Notes to the finnncinl statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 dMarch 2024

18  Revenue from operations

Sale of pratlucts .
Sates of new vehicles 5.656.62 5,260.54
Sale of spare parts and accessories 1.035.71 865.78
6.692,33 6,126.32
Sale of services 20846 179.84
6,900,79 6,3006.16

Other operating revenues

Income from schemes and incentives . 10631 131.08
Finance and insurance commission 8.90 737
Other operating income . 12.49 9.55
127.70 147.99

7,028.49 - 6,454.16

Reconcilintion of revenue from sale of products and services

. Gross revenue 2.366.16 6.597 16
{' Less: Discount allowed . (1065.67) (291.00)
, 6,900,79 6,306.16

(A) Disseggregate of revenue information

The table below presents disnggregated revenues fram contracts with customers for the below years ended by offerings and comrct type. The Company believes that
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cashflows are cfitcted by industry, market and other cconomic
factors.

0

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 202.0

Particulnrs

Revenue by contract type
Fixed price 7,028.49 6,154.16

7,028.49 6,454.16

{B) Contract balances
The following table provides information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers.

L Year ended Yeur ended
Particaturs 31 Mlarch 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables (note 8) 366,07 468.29
Contract liabilities (advance from customers) {note 16) 45.02 5342
(C) Transaction price allocated ta remaining performance obligations
The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to perfonmance obligations that are isfied {or partially satisfied) at the reportng
date:
{
. Yenr ended Yeur ended
- Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Mavch 2024
Within 1 year 45.02 5342
More than 3 years - .
Closing balance 45,02 53.42
19 Other income \
Interest income based on effective interest rate
Fixed deposits with banks - 0.01
Rent deposits 1.23 087
Guin on sale of propeny, plant and equipment (net) I 81 017
Gain on disposal of right-of-usc assets 0.64 -
Liabilities no longer required written back N 397 306
Other non-operating income 327 5.82
§0.92 ) 9.96
20 Purchases of stack-in-trade o
New vehicles 4,869.40 5.538.19
Spares, lubricants and uccessories 86313 7369
5,732.83 6,271.88

21 Change ininventories of stock-in-trade
Opening inventory
Closing inventory

1.017 75 172 4
502.40 1,017.78

§15.35 (545.34)

A



Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the fi inl ( inued)
(Al amounts in Indian.Rupees million)

Yenr ended Year embed
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
22 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and allowances 272.94 232,01
Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer Note 31) 21.67 17.90
Staff welfare expense 25.23 18.82

319.84 268.73

23 Finance custs

Interest on bank borrowings 70.70 . 79.30
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 33) 51.55 43 07
Othier borrowing costs . _35.88 .82

158,13 124,19

24 Depreciation, amortisation snd impnirment

Depreciation on properiy, plant and cquipment 38.77 33.00
Awmontisation and impairment on intangible assets ) 992 17.29
Depreciation on right-of-use assct (Refer Note 33) 53,33 41.94

102.02 9223

25 Other expenses

Rent 0.42 028
Adventising and snles promotion To1233 10.85
Consumables 259 2.53

Repairs and maintenunce:
Building . 282 520
Others 1575 14 86
Pawer, water and fuel . 1195 9.6%
Travelling and conveyance 18.24 16.93
Housckeeping and sceurity and other contract charges 58.78 ) 1838
Officc expenses 413 330
Conununication 6.07 310
Pre-delivery iuspection charges ) . 6.6) 7.01
Rates and taxes 1.22 4:47
‘Transportation charges 8.57 1213
Bank charges 213 .05
Insurance 6.30 A4
Legal and professional (also refer note 29) 5.67 251
Commission 1.56 0.81
Connuission an corporate guaraiiee 3.61 202
Expenditure on corpornie socinl responsibitity ('CSR') (refer note 25 (i) below) 1.75 1
MisccHlancous expenses . 12,22 8.69
182.72 161.43

25 (i) CSR.expendituve

' (i) Gross amount required to be spent during the year ’ 1.75 121
(i) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1.75 121

(iii) Amount spent during the yenron;
Construction? ncquisition of asset

On purposes other than nbove 0.55 .21
Unspent amonnt in relation to:
Ongoing project 1.20 .

Olhier than ongoing project -
(iv) (Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the year -
(v} Total of previous years shortfall - -
(vi} Details of related party transactions (Refer note 35) 0.55 1.21
.. Whiere a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the

(vii) provision during, the periodfyear should be shown séparately
(viii) Reason for shostfalk:

Yor the year ending 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 NA NA
(ix) Nature of CSR nctivities:

«) Payment to Prime minister national relief fund

b) Skill development . 0.37

¢) Edueation . 0.55 0.54
d) Rural developnient . .
Details of ongeing project:
Opening balance Amount spent during the yenr Cloking balunce
Amount
In separate CSR required to From Company’s | From separate . In separate CSR
PITIEags With Company unspent Ale be spent bank Ale CSR unspent Alg, ﬁ\i@gﬁgr}ﬂm_ﬂy unspent Ale
5 ] ’ - - 1.75 0.55 AG VUG 2T 1 v
As at 31 Ma@Np2d - - 1.21 1.21 j )
5 -
W/\ *
/ &
K7
/7
R
& accovS”




Prabal Mators Private Linsited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Al antounts in Indian Rupees million)
Asal Asat
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

26 Income taxes

income 1ax assels 2664 42
Income 1ax lizbilities (13.5% (37 th
Net incone tax assets at the end of the year 10.65 557
(i) Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss Year eaded Year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Current tax {including MAT) [EX) 7
Current tax - paitaining ta carlier years - 140 .
Deferred tax charge (hb 36y [UARLS)
Tax expenses 6.93 4.7
(i) Amount gaised in ather comp ive incomne Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
Before tax Tax (expense)! Netoftac Before tny Tan (expense) benefit Netof tn
benclit
Remeasurcaent of the net defined benefil plans {0.87) v22 (©.65) (0.87) .24 ity
10.87) 0.22 (0.65) ©.87) 0.2t (0.60) ’
Fl Reconcilintion of effective tax rafe Year enderd Year eaded
31 March 20258 31 Mureh 2024
Profit before (axes 2060
Enacted tax sates in fndia 25
Tax using the Company’s statutory tax rate $a%
On account of change in 1ax rale ' . . ey
Other permancat differences Hus [}
Adjustment of cureent tax of carlicr years 136 .
Tas eapesise .83 PIRES I
Effective tax rale 25.53% 26.31 %}

Recognised deferred tax assels and liabilitics

(i) Deferred tax asyels and ies are nileibutable to the following:

. Year ended Year eaded
Particulars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Defessed tax assct, ou account ofs
Impairment losses on financial nssets 165 1ut
Employce benefit expense . .21 1
QOthier fiming dilfcrences 23X 2o
Intesest on lease liability and depreciation on aght-1o-use asset 2 11 s
Totnl deflerred {ax nssets (A) 21907 20,59
Dofereed tax labilittes, on aeconnt of:

Property, plant and equipment (3 63y i782)
Tatal deferred tax Habilivy (B} . {5.63) (7.82)
Deferred fax assetf (linbility) net (A+8) 2344 12,76

“The Company offscls tax assets and liabilities if and only ifil has a legally enforecable right to set off cusrent (ax assets and current tax liabilitics and the defersed tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics relate to incame tases
tevied by the same tax authority. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising out of tax lasses {unabsorbied depreciatton) to the extent of s deferred tax Liability on account of taxable wemporary ditleraness

(i) Movement in semporary differences

Moventent during the year ended 31 March 2025 Asnt Charge! {eredit) in Chinrge/ (credit) in Asat

1 April 2024 the sintement of  other comprehensive 31 March 2028
profit and loss Income

Impairment fosses on financial assels 193 [P .

Employec benefil expense ' 116 [BF) 022

Other timing diffcrences 291 .53 .

Interess on lease liability and depreciation on right-of-uge assel 14.58 (8.25) . 2283

| Proparty. plant and equip (2.82) {2.19) - 1562

. Net deferred tax assets/ (linbilities) N2.36 {10.46) 0.22 23.44
L

Movement during the year ended 31 March 2024 Asat Chorgel {ceedit) in Charge/ {eredit) in Asat

1 April 2023 the statement of  other comprehensive 31 Mnreh 2024
profit and loss {ncome

Tmgiairnient losses on financial assets 346 1.53 . t

Employec benchit expease (an TR a2t Y

Other timing dillerences 116 (L7 - >

Interest on lease liability and depreciation on right-to-use asscl .2 {7.36} . . [RE31

MAT eredit entillement - - . .

Property, plant and cquipment (11.29) 3.4 . AN

Net deferred tax nssels/ (linbilitics) 018 . (12.35) 0.2 12.76




Prabal Mators Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data)

27

28

29

30

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

Contingent linbilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis

GST related matters - -
Income tax related matters 8.83 8.83
Commitments

. .. U . -
Estimated amount of conlracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account (net of advances) and not provided - -
tor

Details of claims agninst the Company

Pending resahution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company 1o estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above as it
is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with various forums/ authoritics. The Company has received all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has adequately provided for when provision is required and disclosed as contingent liabilitics where applicable, in the financial information.
The Company daes not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position. :

Earnings per share

A, Basic earnings per share

The ealeulation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic carnings per
share calculations are as follows:

i) Net profit sttribufable fo equity sharve holders

Parficulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net profit for the year. attributable to the equity share holders (A) 14.73 6Y 42

i) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted)

Particulars \ Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mureh 2024

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 12) 10.000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 cach outstanding during the year (C) oo 12609 10,000
Eamings per share, basic and diluted (A/C) 1,167.27 6,942.09

Number of equity shaves are in millions

B. Diluted earnings per share
There are no potential dilutive equity shares as at the balance sheet dates.

Auditors’ remunerafion (net of goods and service tax)

Pavticulars . Year ended Yeur ended
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

Statutory audit .20 Y00
Tax audit -
Other services
- Certilications - -
2,10 1.00

Segment reporting

The Company has a single reportable business segmient which is reviewed by Chief operating decision maker (‘CODM'"). The Company is engaged in the
business of purchase and sule of commercial vehicles and related services. The entire operations are organised and managed as one organisational unit with
the same set of risks and returns, hence the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment. The Company renders its services in india
only and does not have any operations in ecanomic environments with different risks and retums. hence it is considered operating in a single geographic

segment.The Company has no significant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations; hence no separate disclosure is made
on the same.

Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in (hese financial statements.




Prabal Molors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data)

31
A

Employce benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident lund and
other funds which are defined confribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profil and loss as they accrue. .

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates certain post-employment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. The Company accrues graluity as per the pravisions of the Payment ol Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’)

The Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month's salary for each vear of
completed service (service of six months or above is rounded ofY to one year) at the time of retirement/ exit, restricted to a sum of INR 2.00 mulhon.

Based on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the benefit plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Reconcilintion of the projected defined benefis obligation

Particulars . Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Defined benefit liability 12.53 8.76
Plan assels ) 16.53 807
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability (4.00) 0.69
Liability for compensated absences 4.83 394
Total employee benefit Hability 17.36 12.70
Gratuily fund asset 4.00 -
Non-current defined benefit Hiability - (169

Current delined benefit liability .

Reconcilintion of net defined benefit (assets)/ liability
i) Reconciliation of present valies of defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benfit (asset)/ liability and its components:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2025 31 Narch 2024

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 8.76 378
Current service cost 289 b T
Past service Cost -

Interest cost ! 0.56 .38
Benetits paid (0.55) (.19)

Re-neasurements
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (0.01) 0.67
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in (inancial assumptions 031 (i: 32)
- changes in experience aver the past period - 0.57 074
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year , 12,53 - 8,76

ii) Reconciliation of presemt value of plan assels

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Plan nssets at the beginning of the year 807 808
Contributions paid into the plan 847 020
Benefits paid (0.55) (019
Interest income 0.54 054
Re-measurements .
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined liability/(asset) - (0 50)
Balance at the end of the year 16.53 8.07
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability (4.00) 0.69

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars Yenr ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current service cost 2.89 vl

Net interest on net defined liability 0.01 017

Nef gratuity cost 2.90 1.54

s




Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Tndian Rupees million)

31

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive inconte

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning 0.87 (0.78)
Acturial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation | . 0.87 1.09
Loss/ (return) on plan asset excluding interest income 0.0nH 0.56
Net gyatuity cost 1.74 0.87

Plan asset
Plan asset comprises of the following:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 Narch 2025 31 March 2024
Funds wanaged by Life Insurance Corporation of India I 9.53 8.07

‘The Company makes annual confribution to the Life Insurance Corporation of India { '.IC*) of an amount adviscd by 1.IC. The Campany was nat mformed hy
LIC of the investmenis made by them or the break up of the plan assets into various type ol investments. The Company is expected to contribute INR 0.30
million in the upcoming financial year.

Defined benefit obligation
(i) Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average):

Particulars Year ended ) Yeir ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Discount rate , 6.55% 7.15%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
21 - 30 Years: 25% pa 21 - 30 Years: 26% p.a

Adtrition rat 31 -40 Years: 22% p.a 31- 40 Years: 22% p.a
Attrition rate 41 - 50 Years: 25% p.a 41 - 50 Years: 20% p.a
51-57 Years: 15% p.a 51-57 Years: 26% pa

Weighted average duration of defined benefif obligaiton 4.21 Years 4.19 Years

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as set out below:

Assumptions regarding future mortalify experience are set in accordance with the standard table - IALM 2012-14. The Conipany nssesses these assumptions
with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities yield

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plans.
(ii) Seusitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars As at 31 Marceh 2025 As at 31 NMareh 2024

Increase Decrease luecrease Decrease
Discount ratc (1% movement) (2.06) 2.15 (2.05) 2.14
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2.15 (2.08) 2.14 (2.09)

L}
Although the analysis docs not lake nccount of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity
of the assumption shown. '
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the | fnued)
1Al amounts in ndizn Rupees aillion)

n Financint Insttuments- Falve values and iisic mnnngement {continued) ¢

B Measurement of fair values
The Company docs not have any assels or tiabilities measured ot fair value

C Financinl risk mnungement
The Company’s activities expose it to a varicly of inancial risks: credit sisk, liquidity risk and market risk.
Risk management framework

i) Creditvisk

Credit sisk is the sisk of financial loss to the Company ifa or pasty [o a financial i Tails ta meet its
trade recaivables).

and asises p pally front its of L achvibes

The Company is exposed to credit risk as a result of e sisk of Jefaulting on their obli

The Company's exposuse 10 ceedit risk primasily 1elates to accounlts receivable and cash

L

and cash

uivaleats: The Company itors and limils its exposure to credil risk on o continuous basis. To mannge this the Company periodically reviews the fi ial retiabiliy ol its tahing aio account
Ihe financial condition, current economic trends end analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. The canying amount of financial assels rep i credit fisk
The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss thal rep its estimate of expected losses in respect of tade and other recaivables based on the past and the secem collecttun wend The aunemum
exposure 1o the credit isk-a1 the reporting dale is primarily from trade receivables amaunting (o INR 366.07 million (31 March 2024° INR 465.29 millicn)

' . I . -
The Company has no significant cusiomer whose camying value exceads 10% of the revenure from operations. There is no significant concentration of credit risk
The movement in allowance for credit loss inrespect of financial asset during the vear was as foliows:
Aflowance for credit loss Asat Asat]
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance al the beginning of the year 7.66 187
Bad debis written oft during the year - -
1 foss pnised (reversed) 686 1 21)
Balance i the end of the yeayr 14.52 7.66

Ciedit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balences is liniited as the Campany generally transacls with banks and financial nstitulians with high credit satings assigned by domesuc crednt raling

agencivs.

The Company allocales each exposure to a credit risk grade based on the historic trend of receivables movement between the ageing buckets. The loss mtes are caledlated based on the stmple a crags of the

{rend i recivable ageing.

Agehig peviod Avernge toss 1ale
) As at 31 Mareh 2028 Asat 31 March 2024
Not duc [ [
Less than 6 months 1%
6 months - | year LI,
More than 1 vear 00, ton,
i) Liguldity risk
Liquidity risk is the sk that the Company will encounter difliculty in meating the obligations associated wilh its financial fiabilines that ase setiled by delivenng cash or znother linancial asser The Company’'s
approach to munaging liquidity is to ensure, as Fr as possible, that it witl always have sullicient liquidity 1o meet ns Fabikities when due. under both normal and stressed conditions. withont ncusnng
unacceptable fosses or risking damage to the Cormpany’s reputation,
The Company believes shat the working capital is suflicient fo meet its current requitements. Accordingly. no liquidity risk is perceived. The table below provides details regarding the undi i |
maturities of significant Ainancial liabililics as of 31 Masch 2025:
Particulms i Payable within 1 year More than 1 year Totud
Trade payables v 2102 . B
ing 411.70 K183 2523
Lease liabilities 76.26 151242 1.588.68
Other financial liabilitics 23.40 - 230
The table below y des delals ding the undi d ! ilies of signiticant financial linbilitics as of 31 March 2024
Particulars Payable within 1 yenr More i 1 year Totat!
Trade payables 13423 - 138.93
Borrowings R2.67 55124 153391
Loase lizbilities 24.66 1488 54 131320
Olher financial linbilitics 1774 . 1254
iy Markel risk .
Masket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash lows of a financial i will beeause of changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equily prices

Foreign convency tisk
The Company is esposed to cuscency fisk 10 the extent that there is a mismatch between the ies i which are d ! and the fi al curreney of the Company The hunctionz)
currency of'the Company is INR and the Company does not have any material foreign currency transactions during the years ended 31 March 2125 and 31 March 2024

Cash flow and fafr value intevest rate risk
‘The Company’s nwain interest rale risk arfses from long-term borrewings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash low interest tate rish The interest rate un the Conpaeny s inangia! st
based on market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis.

(n} Interest rate visk expostre
‘There were no variable rate fong-tenn borrowings during the current year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statentents (continucd}
{All amaunls in Indian Rupees million)

3 Lenses

renegotisted nearing the expiry to reflect market rentals.

(i) Lease Habilltles
Following are the changes in the lease linbililies for the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

The Company has taken showroonis and service centres on Tease frons vanous parties from where business opesations are performed. Tha leases y pically run for 2 penod of § vear- 49 years | ease pavinenis are

Parliculars 31 March 2025 31 Marcl 2024
Balanccas at | April ) PN 2842
Additions [ORT] b ey
Finanee cost accrued dusing the year 51.35 4307
Derccognilion of lease liabifity during the year 16.35) -
Remeasurement on account of modification 7406 (RO
Pavment of lease liabilities (69.95) (S0 74)
Dalouce as nt 31 Mavch 584440 §32.74
Non-current lease liabililies 85123 NET
Current lease liabilitics 1323 2400

{i) Right-of-use assels
Right-oluse asscls related (o leased properties that do not meet the definition of investment propeny ae p

p2ity. plant and

Particulms 31 March 2028 3 March 2024
Bolance at 1 Apsil AN EXTYRY
Addition 10 right-ol~use assets [SR]] 163,05
Disposal (R 4] .
Remeasurement on account of modification 7.06 11093
Depreciation for the yeas 151.82) [ERER])
Dadance af 31 March 493 474,80
[ti] Ised in ¢ of profit or loss -

Parvticulnrs 31 Murch 2025 31 Mareh 2024
interest on lense liabilities 51.55 1307
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 51.%2 J0 82
(D] T Ised In of cash fTows

[Particutars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024]

‘Tola! cxsh outflow for feases

{69.95)

[WRE]

34 Capital management

The Company's policy is lo maintain a stable capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confi
of retum on capital employed as well as the debt 10 total cquiily ratio. For the purpose of debt to total equity 1

capital and all other equily reserves.

dence and to sustain futnre de

afihe L ¢ss A

captal en the basis
tio. debt considered is longsterm aid shori-wom borrowings Total equuy compnse o issied share

Asat Asal
31 March 2025 3 Marel 2024
Totnl equity alfributable fo (he cquity shaveholders of the Company (A) 363.28 199.20
Non - curnent borrowings 283.53 33129
Cuttent bortonings EAIR 9K (Y
Tolal borrowings 725,23 1.53391
Less: cash and cash equivaients 3833 P2 ]
Adjusted aet debt (B) 664,50 1,490,107
Adjusted net debi to total cyulty yalfo (B/A) . 1.84 745
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Prabat Motoys Private Linsited
Notes to the {i ial inued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million} .

35 Relnted porties
1. Naums of related parties and deseription of relationship:

{n) Uttimate Holding Company

{b) Holding Conipany

{c) Entities in which KMP has significant influence

(d) Fellow Subsidiaries

(¢) Other related partics with whom the Company had transactions during the year
- Key P 1 and their relatives (KMP)

1. Related party iransactions:

Popular Vehicles and Services Litnited

Keracon Equipments Private Limited

Kuttukamn Trading Venlures
Kuitukaran Engine Rebuilders
K P Paul Foundation, India

Poputar Mcga Motors India Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited
Kutiukaran Cars Private Limited

M. Johin K Paul, Dircctor

Mr. Francis K Paul, Director

Mr. Prashant Mohan, independent Director (w.c.f. 17 January 2025)
Mr. George Joseph, Independent Director (w.c.f 17 January 2025)

Mr. Raj Natayan, Adduienal Director (w.e.f 14 March 2025)

Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangam, Director {w e [ 15 November 2023)
s, Malini Eapen, Director (w.e.f. 13 November 2023)

M. Dinesh {til} 30 September 2023)

Me. M A Safjan (1ill 14 Masch 2025)

The Company has enteed into the following transactions with related parties during the yeac ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particulars Year eaded Year catled
31 dlarch 2025 31 March 2024

Purchase of assets .

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 057 158

Papular Mega Motoss India Private Limited - RS

Expense met by the Company

Kutwkaran Trading Ventures - 068 o6l

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 7.48, 498

Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited - ooy

Interest expense on intercorpovate loan

Papular Vehicles and Services Limited 308 tat

Carporate social vesponsibility expenses

K P Paul Foundation, India 0.55 121

Sale of motor vehicle

Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited - 020

Sale of offier support sevvice

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited cm 02s

Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 038 S 009

Rutiukaran Trading Ventures vo2 -

Repairs and maintenance

Popular Mega Motoss India Private Limited 0.03 004

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited ) nal nin

Labour charges

Kuttukaran Engine Rebuilders 0.14 058

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 000 0.04

Papular Mega Motors India Private Limited - Y]

Corporite gunranice commission paid

Keracon Equipments Private'Limited 3.6) 202

Intercorporate loan received

Papular Vehicles and Services Limited - St

Conversion of intercorporate lonit ta cquify

Popular Veliicles and Services Linited ~ 150 00

1. Balaunee receivable front payable 1o related pariles as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

Trade payables

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 070 137

Ruttekaran Trading Ventures . “pos

Kuttukaran Engine Rebuilders 007 300

Keracon Equipments Private Limited 038 018

‘Trade receivables

Popular Mepa Motors India Private Limited 0.03 DY

Kuttukarmn Cars Private Limited 0.85

Long ternt borvowings

John K Taul 1787

Franeis K Paul 1787

Popular Vehicles and Services Lintited 500.00

|
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Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indinn Rupees million)

vt

36 0) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of tunds) by the Compuny 10 or in any other
persons or entitics, including forcign entitics (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the [Intermediary shall. directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified ju any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“*Uhimale Beneficiaries’

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiarics.
)

'} or provide any guaranice.

36 b) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entitics, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded i writing,
or athenwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

37 Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements *

a)  Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 202§ As al 31 March 2024
.

Current assets 1,036.11 1.695 58

Current linbilities 664.01 1,237 14

Ratio 1.56 1.37

% Change from previous year 13.75% 5899%

The improvement in the current assct ratio during the year is affributable to improved inventory tumover and deblors tumover.

b) Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total cquity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings

Particulars

Current borrowings [a]

Non current borrowings {b]

Total debt [a) + []

Total equity '
Ratio

% Change from previous year

As at 31 March 2025 As a1 31 March 2024
441.70 982 67

283.53 S51 29

725,23 1,533.91

363.28 19920

2.00 770
-74.07% 72.33%

I improvement in the debt-cquity ratio during the year is primarily duc 1o the conversion of INR 150.00 million of long-term loan from the holding company mlo equiy

¢) Debt Service Covernge Ratio = Earnings available to service debt divided by total interest and borrowings

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2028 31 Mareh 2024
.
Profit before tax 2166 a4 21
Finance cost 158.13 124.19
Depreciation and amortisation 102.02 92.23
Earnings available to service det 281.81 310,63
Interest cost 15813 12449
Non-current borrowings 283.53 55124
Current borrowings 411.70 082.67
Total borrowings 725.23 1.533.91
Debt service coverage ratio 0.32 0.19
% Change from previous year end 70.29% 135911k

The improvement in the debt service coverage ratio during the year is altributable to improved inventory tumover and deblors tumover.

)
d) Return on Equity/Return on Investmient = Net profit alter tax divided by Equity

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Net profit afler tax

Total equity

Ratio

% Chanpe from previous year

1473

363.28
4.05%
(88.37)%

6912
19920
34.85%

{37 11}

The decline in the retum on equity ratio during the year is attribulable to the conversian of INR 150.00 miltion of long-term borrowings from the holding company into equity.

as well as an fnerease in the operational costs incurred by the Company.

Py




Prabal Motors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continucd)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

¢) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

i Year ended| Year ended
Particulars
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
T 047
Net profit after tax 1473 ] ﬁi‘:;
3 4 i} 54
Sales 7,028. li) 454, ¢
Ratio 0.21 u/:: ’l.l)B u:.
% Change from previous year {80.52)% (42 06)%

‘The decline in the net profit ratio during the year is primuarily due to an increase in operational costs incurved by the Company.

) Inventory Turnover Ratlo = Cost of materials consumed divided by closing inyentory

Particalars . Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2025/ 3t March 2024
Purchase of stock in trade fa] 5,732.83 6,272.88
Changes in inventorics of stock-in-trade [b) 51535 ‘( 545 ?wl)
Cost of material consumed [a}+[b] 6,218.18 2 ~-}
Closing inventory 502,40 101773
Ratio 1244 5.63
% Change from previous year 120.99% (23.94%

The improvement in the inventory mover ritiv during the year is attributable to the introduction of an fiternal control mechanism aimed at maintainng mventory levels for 4

waximum of 43 days.

..\

= g) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Total income divided by Net Working capital whereas net working cnpital=current assets - current liabililies

Particulars Year ended Yearended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations and ollier income 7,039.41 0,104.12
Current asset {a} , 1,036.11 1.0935.58
Current liability [b} 664.61 1,237 14
Net working captial {a-(b] 371 50 458,44
Ratio 18.95 14,10
i % Change from previous year . 34.39% (137.15)%

T ‘The increase in the net capital tumover ratio during the year is primarily due to higher revenue generation with efficicnt utilization of working capital, along will better

inventory and receivibles management.

h) ‘Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio= Revenue from operations divided by trade receivables

Purticulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Revenue from operations 7.028.49 6.454.16
‘Trade receivable 366.07 10829
‘Trade receivable turnover ratio 19.20 13.78
% Change from previous year end 39.31% (63 85)%

The improvement in the trade receivable turnover ratio during the year is due to decling in trade receivable balance which is attributable 10 the introduction of a new aiernal

control mechanism for receivable management and billing processes.

i) Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBLT) divided by capital employed (Total equity + Borrowings)

( Particnlars Year ended Year ended
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profi before tax 21.66 94.21

Finance cost 158.13 124.19

Eamings before interest and tax 179 79 21840

Total equity[a] 363.28 199 20

Talal bormowings(b] ! 72523 1.5339]

Capital employed [a]+{b] 1,088.51 1,733.11

Ratio 0.17 0.13
% Change from previous year 31.07% (10 99)%

The improvement in the retum on capital employed ratio during the year is due {6 the addition of INR 150.00 million in equity by converting the inter company borrowings in

the current year.

§) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Cost of material consumed divided by closing trade payables

i Purticulars Year ended Yuvar ended

# . 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Cost of material consumed 6,248.18 5.727.54
Trade payable 23.02 13873
Trade payable turnover ratio 271.42 41.28
% Change from previous year end 557.59% 18 57%

Ratio increased duc to decrease i

ayables in the current year.
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Prabal Motors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

38  Additional regulatory information pursuant ta the requirenient in Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013

39

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

i) The Company does not have any transactions with companics struck off. )

iii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment right-of-use assets or inlangible assels or Doth during the current of previous year.

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currericy ar Virtual Currcncy during the financial year.

v) The Company docs not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

vi) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finaneial institution or goveminent or any governmenl authority.

vii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed wnder the Companics Act, 2013.

vii) The Company has not entered into any sciieme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

ix) The Company docs not have any loans or advances in the nature of loans granted 1o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties either sevesally or jomily with say
other person, that are (a) repayable on demand or (b)'without specifying any teoms or period of repayment. :

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

As per our report of even date attached:

Jir BS Rand Co Jfor and on behall of the Board ol Directors ol
Chartered Acconntants Prabal Motors Private Limited
Firm registration number: 128510W CIN: US0101KL20O6PTCO019140

John' I Pagi

e /ﬁ/‘ﬁ/

Vipin Lodha

Purtner Director Drrector
Membership No.: 076806 DIN: 00016513 - ~ DiNouol 8825
Kochi Kochi

29 May 2025 . 29 May 2025






